Minutes of Meeting of Policy and Resources Committee of Mid Ulster District
Council held on Thursday 8 May 2025 in the Council Offices, Burn Road,
Cookstown and by Virtual Means

Members Present Councillor Quinn, Chair

Councillor Brown, F Burton, J Burton, Cahoon, Corry,
Gildernew, Johnston, McAleer, McConnell, McLean,
McLernon, S McPeake, Molloy*, Wilson

Officers in Chief Executive

Attendance Mrs Canavan, Strategic Director of Organisational
Development, Strategy & Performance (SD: ODSP)
Mrs Dyson, Head of Human Resources (HoHR) **
Mr McGuckin, Head of Strategic Services and
Engagement (HOSS&E)
Mr Moffett, Assistant Director: Organisational
Development, Strategy & Performance (AD: ODSP)
Ms McNally, Assistant Director of Corporate Services &
Finance (AD: CS&F)
Mr Scullion, Assistant Director of Property Services (AD:
ps)**
Mr O’Hagan, Head of IT (HolT)
Mrs Forde, Committee and Member Services Manager

Others in Deputation — RAISE Programme
Attendance

Mr Peter Nixon***

Mr Michael McGinley***

*

Denotes members present in remote attendance
** Denotes Officers present by remote means
*** Denotes others present by remote means

The meeting commenced at 7.00 pm.

The Chair, Councillor Quinn welcomed everyone to the meeting and those watching
the meeting through the Live Broadcast. Councillor Quinn in introducing the meeting
detailed the operational arrangements for transacting the business of the committee
in the Chamber and by virtual means, by referring to Annex A to this minute.

PR082/25 Notice of Recording

Members noted that the meeting would be webcast for live and subsequent
broadcast on the Council’s You Tube site.

PR083/25 Apologies

1 - Policy & Resources Committee (08.05.25)



Councillor Totten
PR084/25 Declarations of Interest

The Chair, Councillor Quinn reminded Members of their responsibility with regard to
declarations of interest.

PR085/25 Chairs Business

The Chair, Councillor Quinn advised that the new Pope, Pope Leo had been selected
and commented he was a great admirer of Pope Francis and wished the incoming
Pope all the best stating he would have a lot to live up to.

Councillor Cahoon said it had most certainly been a historic day as it was the 80t
anniversary of Victory in Europe Day. She advised that the commemorations had
progressed with a two-minute silence and across the district this evening many
communities were commemorating the day when the news flash had been given that
World War 1l had ended. Councillor Cahoon said that amongst the joy and relief felt
was concern for loved ones, people who had lost their lives or were missing. It was
in coming weeks that the truth of what all had happened was discovered as prisoner
of war camps were liberated, people were repatriated and the horror of the murder of
some six million Jews was discovered. After years of uncertainty and sacrifice the
people of Europe faced new challenges of reconstruction and peace and said that
today we remember those men and women who defended the freedom enjoyed
today.

The Chair, Councillor Quinn said he had listened with great interest to some of the
interviews of those who had served stating that their stories and recollections had
been fabulous and noted that in the next decade many of these people who had
served, who had first hand memories may not be with us.

PR086/25 RAISE Programme

The Chair, Councillor Quinn welcomed Department for Community representatives
Messrs Nixon and McGinley to the meeting and invited them to deliver their
presentation outlining the objectives and benefits of the RAISE programme and how
it was hoped it would be delivered in the eligible areas of Dungannon and Coalisland.

The Chair, Councillor Quinn thanked Messrs Nixon and McGinley for their
presentation and invited Members questions.

Mr Nixon commented that he would be happy to accommodate a more detailed
meeting or separate conversation if members required it.

The Chair commented on the statistics regarding children not receiving A-C grades
and enquired how far out the catchment area goes out with primary schools in
Coalisland asking was it only Primary Dixon in Coalisland or was it outlays to other
schools in the area.

2 - Policy & Resources Committee (08.05.25)



Mr McGinley advised that this was not a school’s programme, this was a programme
to try and support and target young people from the identified super output areas.

He said that there was an initial engagement list of schools who had a particular
number of children and young people who attend the school, and he had shared the
email far and wide. Some positive responses had been received from several
primary schools but some with higher numbers wanted their voices to be heard which
was being achieved through the Extended Schools Clusters and School Principals
forums.

Mr McGinley asked if any member was aware of any school which had been missed
to let him know and he would be happy to have a conversation with them.

Councillor McLernon thanked the group for their presentation but was sure that they
were aware of Sinn Feins concerns in relation to the RAISE Programme. The
decision to pursue a greater geographical spread means that essential funding is
being taken away from areas which need it the most. She understood the need to
get the group set up and the work delivered but was concerned about the formula
and methodology used to determine where this programme should run. It is widely
accepted that poverty is the biggest predictor of educational underachievement and
was a huge concern that no additional weight was given to poverty as an indicator in
the formula to determine areas of eligibility.

Councillor McLernon said that it would be appreciated if a copy of tonight’s
presentation could be circulated to members.

Councillor Corry said that Dungannon and Coalisland seemed to be the areas
included in the super output but there were other areas within Mid Ulster like
Pomeroy and Ardboe which were not. The member alluded to areas of South Derry
which unfortunately rank in areas of deprivation such as Maghera, Upperlands and
Swatragh and enquired if there were any plans to include them in the future as it was
disappointing that they haven’t been included at present.

Mr Nixon advised that there were no plans to include any further areas at this
juncture. He said that indicators were applied and ranked based on GCSE
attainment as this was the uniform measure of educational achievement levels
across Northern Ireland.

Councillor Cahoon thanked the group for their presentation and said that it was good
to get more ‘meat on the bones’ on what it would look like locally in Mid Ulster as it
was being rolled out. She said that it would be interesting to see the emerging
themes, especially professional training and impact of ACES and awareness as
trauma-informed practice was key as there were so many young children in Northern
Ireland with ACES and trying to understand the impact they have as the child
progresses and transitions from school, further education to employment. The
Member said that since this was a community-based programme enquired how the
metrics would be measured, would it be down to the GCSE attainment.

Mr Nixon advised that there were two elements of measurement which was being

looked at on a project programme overarching level with the Education and Training
Inspector coming in to look at the aspects of education elements of the different

3 - Policy & Resources Committee (08.05.25)



projects. He said that an independent evaluator was being appointed to carry out
some work on the programme also. It was anticipated that each project will
undertake baseline work to demonstrate distance travelled through each of the
projects and then anticipate extrapolating up to being able to report back at a
programme level. Once all the information is completed it will be published with an
aim to be transparent to ensure that everyone can see the direction of travel in terms
of the difference being made and how information is being captured and reported
back and scrutinised by individuals, families, localities and overall population level.

Messrs Nixon and McGinley left the meeting at 7.25 pm.
Matters for Decision
PR087/25 Request(s) to llluminate Council Property

Members considered previously circulated report which sought approval to illuminate
and light up the Council’s three designated properties to raise awareness for the
following:

e Irish Vasculitis Organisation — International Vasculitis Awareness Day — 15
May 2025 — Colour: Red

e Deaf Blind Awareness UK- Deaf Blind Awareness Week- 27 June 2025
Colour: Purple

e Tourettes Action — Tourettes Awareness Day — 7 June 2025 — Colour: Green

Councillor J Burton expressed his appreciation that Ranfurly House had been lit up
blue on the night that the Swifts Football Club had celebrated winning the Irish Cup
Final. He said it had tied in with the celebrations welcoming the open top bus
carrying the team into the Square.

The Chair, Councillor Quinn said it was great to see the celebrations and great to see
Philomena Begley with a new audience.

Proposed by Councillor J Burton
Seconded by Councillor F Burton and

Resolved  That it be recommended to Council to illuminate the three designated

Council properties as follows —

¢ Irish Vasculitis Organisation — International Vasculitis Awareness Day
— 15 May 2025 - Colour: Red

e Deaf Blind Awareness UK- Deaf Blind Awareness Week- 27 June
2025 Colour: Purple

e Tourettes Action — Tourettes Awareness Day — 7 June 2025 — Colour:
Green

PR088/25 Member Services

No issues.

4 - Policy & Resources Committee (08.05.25)



Matters for Information

PR089/25 Minutes of Policy and Resources Committee held on 3 April 2025
Members noted Minutes of Policy & Resources Committee held on 3 April 2025.
PR090/25 Annual Subscriptions

Members noted previously circulated report which detailed correspondence received
from the Local Government Staff Commission and the National Association for
Councillors (NAC) on annual contributions payable for 2025-2026.

Councillor McLean referred to LGSC and said that he appreciated the process that
has been through the assembly to be wound up previously with a target date of 2027.
The Member made reference to £20k subscription and enquired whether it was value
for money and if there a need to continue to make this subscription to an
organisation which was going to be wound up.

The Head of Strategic Services and Engagement (HoSS&E) advised that this is a
statutory requirement for Council to pay this subscription until the Executive
dissolves the Staff Commission. The HoSSE said that Council still benefits of HR
advice and guidance in relation to various matters.

Councillor S McPeake said that he had raised this question annually as LGSC were
to be wound up years ago. He advised that he had been part of the NILGA
delegation meeting where it stated that work would be done inhouse once the new
Councils came into existence. Unfortunately, this has rumbled on for 10 years now
costing money and it seemed to be never-ending.

Councillor F Burton said that this issue was regularly discussed at NILGA meetings
and wondered if primary legalisation was brought forward by Stormont, could it be
wound up sooner maybe in March 2026 rather than running it on to March 2027 to
save the Council £20k next year.

The SD: Organisational Development, Strategy & Performance advised that the
LGSC can only be wound up when legislation was brought through the assembly and
unfortunately Council has no influence until that date commences.

Councillor McLean sought clarification on whether Council’s subscription has
decreased due to the wind down and reduction in size.

The SD: ODSP advised that the subscription may have decreased slightly by not as
much as what Council would expect.

PR091/25 Update Report on Constitutional Change

Members noted previously circulated report which provided update on the

implementation of the motion that was brought before Council and carried in May
2021 in relation to constitutional change.

5 - Policy & Resources Committee (08.05.25)



Councillor Gildernew said that the conversation around a United Ireland was very
much alive and growing, we were living in a time of change and welcomed the report
after the initial motion was passed by Council in May 2021. She welcomed
consultation with residents of Mid Ulster as it was an important part of this process.
The Member wished to request that the timeframe for the delivery of the workshops
be shortened if possible as it currently sits at approximately 19 months for six
workshops. She also requested that Environment be included within the Agricultural
and Waterways theme and that Arts and Culture be included within the sports theme.

Councillor Gildernew advised that she was looking at the European Movement of
Ireland EU poll 2025 and one of the key findings of the research was that 67%
respondents living in the North would support a United Ireland in the EU. The
member asked that the North’s Re-Entry into Europe be included as a separate
theme for the workshops.

Councillor Gildernew enquired about proposed timeline for the online consultation
and if a terms of reference or equivalent would be in place to keep track on progress.
She asked that this item be kept on the agenda until this process was completed.

Councillor McLean said that it may come as no great surprise and whilst he did
appreciate that the report was for information, his group is firmly opposed to the
plans and firmly opposed the motion. However, his group appreciated that Council
had the anomaly on the night and therefore carried the motion. The Member was still
of the opinion that Council does not have the right for any constitutional issues and
should not be involved in it as it was not the purpose of Council. He felt that this
proposal and process represented a waste of rate payers money and staff resources
at a time when people are struggling financially on their day to day living. Councillor
McLean felt that this piece of work needs revisiting in his opinion given that the
equality screening was previously carried out on a failed attempt to commission this
piece of work by an outside provider. Now that the piece of work has been brought
back inhouse, Councillor McLean stated that it should be equality screened again
and, in his opinion, staff should also be equality screened to ensure balance.

Councillor McLean also enquired about who would be responsible for vetting the
externals speakers at the workshops and how much it would cost and asked if this
would be published. Members have been advised that this series of workshops does
not suppose a corporate position or support or endorse an outcome in relation to
constitutional change, yet this piece of work is a direct result of a motion that
mandates and focuses on Irish Unity which contradicts itself in terms.

Councillor McLean said that his party rejects any sense inevitability regarding a so-
called United Ireland. The combined nationalist and republican vote in Northern
Ireland has not increased since 1988 and leading polls reject any notion that there’s
a majority support for a change in Northern Ireland’s constitutional position.

Councillor McLean wished to put it on record that his party was completely opposed
to it and would not be given it any credence or any support and possibly be taking
some sort of legal advice whether it is right under the equality process or whether it
should be happening at all.

6 - Policy & Resources Committee (08.05.25)



Councillor S McPeake said that he had attended the workshop in 2024 and sought
clarity as to whether a working group had been part of the outworkings.

The HoSSE informed that there was no agreement to setting up a working group but
there was an all-member group in place to ensure equality of opportunity to capture
the views of everyone within Mid Ulster in relation to constitutional change. He
informed Members that Officers were working to the motion that was agreed by
Council in 2021.

Councillor S McPeake said that essentially, we are dealing the outworkings of the
motion which we were mandated to do. He welcomed the report and said Councillor
Gildernew had touched on a few points which could be fill some gaps.

He referred to the research from universities and felt that this whole process needed
to be fluid as things develop and was aware of a report being published today. The
Member said that the first workshop was to be on sport and he would like to see what
is included before it goes live and all Members should having the opportunity for
input to fill in any gaps as there was a balance to be struck. He referred to the
previous workshop which he understood was to help create a process but said he felt
further Member input was needed as the matter progressed rather than waiting to the
end and say we should have included something else.

Councillor Johnston welcomed the report and felt that it did no harm to talk and
discuss things as an advocate of a new Ireland. She advised she had attended
events in the Heaney Centre and Cookstown which was attended by both
nationalists and unionists. She said it had been a very interesting event as everyone
felt in a safe environment in which they could talk freely about their worries and
concerns as people can be sensitive to that.

Councillor Johnston referred to previous comment about nationalist and republican
vote not increasing, stated that there was a wide acceptance that there was a middle
ground and those would be the decision makers and up to both communities to put
forward their arguments for the future and concluded those voting for example
Alliance and Green Party will be the decision makers to prepare a way forward.

The Chair enquired if Councillor Gildernew wished to make her comments a
proposal.

Councillor Gildernew confirmed that she was asking if timeframe for the delivery of
the workshops be shortened. The Member said that by looking at the themes she
felt that the Environment could sit in nicely with Agriculture and Waterways and
similarly Arts and Culture included within Sports instead of making more themes.
She suggested following up on the poll and the ongoing discussion and to add
another theme on the Re-Entry into Europe.

The Chief Executive said that in relation to delivery, the report reflects what Council
can do with the resources it has and officers do not wish to present a report which
over inflates to what Council has available by way of staff time and effort. He said
that officers had included what could be achieved without the need for additional
resources to deliver on what was a sensitive issue.

7 - Policy & Resources Committee (08.05.25)



Councillor Gildernew acknowledged comments.

The Chair confirmed that the paper was for noting.

PR092/25 Update on outcome of consultation undertaken on the Council’s
proposed performance improvement objectives 2025 — 2026

Members noted previously circulated report which detailed the outcome of the public

consultation undertaken on the Council’s proposed improvement objectives 2025 —

2026.

Councillor Cahoon said that by reading through responses there were quite a few

around the availability of swimming lessons for children with additional needs and

asked if additional lessons could be offered.

The SD: ODSP advised that there was a proposal with on the table which was with

Trade Unions for consultation, she concluded there was a meeting scheduled and

additional swimming lessons was one of the points for discussion.

PR093/25 Mid Ulster Community Planning: Progress Update

Members noted previously circulated report which provided update on Mid Ulster
Community Planning activity for the period January 2024 to March 2025.

Councillor S McPeake said that he would like to hear from Officers on how they see it
evolving on whether it was getting better and how it's bedding in.

The SD: ODSP advised that definite progress was being made at this stage and that
over the past 18 months the community plan had become more action based and
definite progress was being made and relationships built.

Councillor Wilson entered the meeting at 7.45 pm.

Councillor McLean referred to workshops and said that there seems to be more
absentees and apologies than attendees.

The SD: ODSP advised that those who were keen to put their shoulder to the wheel
and work were there and progress was being made.
PR094/25  Service Plan 2025-26: Org Development, Strategy and

Performance

Members noted Service Plan for Organisational Development, Strategy and
Performance for period 2025-26.

8 - Policy & Resources Committee (08.05.25)



The Chair, Councillor Quinn said it was his last meeting as chair of the committee
and he extended his thanks to fellow members and to Councillor F Burton for
chairing the meeting when required.

Live broadcast ended at 7. 47pm.

Local Government (NI) Act 2014 - Confidential Business

Proposed by Councillor F Burton
Seconded by Councillor McLernon and

Resolved In accordance with Section 42, Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local
Government Act (NI) 2014 that Members of the public be asked to
withdraw from the meeting whilst Members consider items PR095/25
to PR101/25.

Matters for Decision
PR095/25 Maghera Regeneration Programme Update
PR096/25  Staffing Matters for Decision

Matters for Information

PR097/25  Confidential Minutes of Policy & Resources Committee
held on 3 April 2025

PR098/25  Staff Matters for Information

PR099/25 Update on Fair Employment Monitoring Report for year
end 1 January 2025

PR100/25 Contracts and DAC Registers — Update

PR101/25 Update: Desertcreat Lands (Verbal)

P102/25 Duration of Meeting

The meeting was called for 7.00 pm and ended at 8.11 pm.

Chair

Date

9 - Policy & Resources Committee (08.05.25)



Annex A - Introductory Remarks from the Chairperson

Good evening and welcome to the Council’s [Policy & Resources/Environment/
Development] Committee in the Chamber, [Cookstown/Magherafelt] and virtually.

| specifically welcome the public watching us through the Live Broadcast. The Live
Broadcast will run for the period of our Open Business but will end just before we
move into Confidential Business. | let you know before this happens.

Just some housekeeping before we commence. Can | remind you:-

o If you have joined the meeting remotely, please keep your audio on mute unless
invited to speak and then turn it off when finished speaking

o Keep your video on at all times, unless you have bandwidth or internet connection
issues, where you are advised to try turning your video off

o If you wish to speak please raise your hand in the meeting or on screen and keep
raised until observed by an Officer or myself

o Should we need to take a vote this evening | will ask each member to confirm
whether they are for or against the proposal or abstaining

o When invited to speak please introduce yourself by name to the meeting

o For any member attending remotely, if you declare an interest in an item, please
turn off your video and keep your audio on mute for the duration of the item

o If referring to a specific report please reference the report, page or slide being
referred to

o Lastly, | remind the public and press that taking photographs of proceedings or

using any means to enable anyone not present to see or hear proceedings, or
making a simultaneous oral report of the proceedings are not permitted

Thank you and we will now move to the first item on the agenda - apologies and then
roll call of all other Members in attendance.

10 - Policy & Resources Committee (08.05.25)



